
 

 

Standards Committee  - 14 September 2022 1 

 

BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY 

 

 

Dear Member 

A meeting of the STANDARDS COMMITTEE will be held ON WEDNESDAY, 

14TH SEPTEMBER, 2022 AT 10.00 AM when your attendance is requested. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Catherine Mealing-Jones 

 

Chief Executive 

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY FILMS AND 

WEBCASTS ALL ITS PUBLIC MEETINGS LIVE  - 

http://www.breconbeacons.public-i.tv/core/  

 

Fire Evacuation Advice 

In the event of a fire, please exit the building via the main staircase, 

and assemble in the car park at Assembly Point 3 

 

1  INTRODUCTION AND APOLOGIES  

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

3  MINUTES (Pages 3 - 4) 

4  MEMBER DISPENSATION REQUESTS (Pages 5 - 8) 

5  STANDARDS COMMITTEE DISPENSATION POLICY (Pages 9 - 22) 

6  OFFICER DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Pages 23 - 38) 

Public Document Pack

http://www.breconbeacons.public-i.tv/core/


 

 

 

 

Standards Committee  - 14 September 2022 2 

 

7  NATIONAL FORUM FOR STANDARDS COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

(Pages 39 - 40) 

8  UPDATE ON THE AUTHORITY  

 

SCHEDULE OF CORRESPONDENCE 

1. To receive apologies for absence 

2. Such other correspondence as, in the opinion of the Chairman, is of such urgency 

as to warrant consideration. 

Any enquiries about this agenda should be addressed to Democratic Services   



 
 
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Standards Committee 1 3 December 2021 

 

 

MINUTES OF BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY STANDARDS 

COMMITTEE HELD VIRTUALLY ON FRIDAY, 3RD DECEMBER, 2021 
 

 

 

PRESENT: 

 

 

Martin Veale (Deputy Chair), Claire  Moore, Pam Hibbert (Chair) and Cllr Andrew James 

 

 

15014 Election of Chair and Deputy Chair of Standards Committee  

 

RESOLVED: That Mrs P Hibbert be elected Chair of 

the Standards Committee until the next Annual General 

Meeting of the Authority. 

  

RESOLVED: That Mr Martin Veale be elected Deputy 

Chair of the Standards Committee until the next 
Annual General Meeting of the Authority. 

 

16014 Correspondence  

 

Apologies were received from Cllr Mrs Ann Webb.  

 

17014 Declarations of Interest  

 

There were no declarations of interest. 

 

18014 Minutes  

 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 

December 2020 be approved and the Chairman authorized to sign them as a correct 

record. 

 

19014 Ombudman's Annual Report  

 

The Standards Committee noted the report. 

 

20014 Update on the Authority 2021  

 

Members noted the verbal update. 

 
21014 Update on Member Development Programme  

 

Members noted the verbal update. 

 

22014 Any Other Business  

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



  
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Standards Committee 2 3 December 2021 

 

RESOLVED: To exclude the press and public from the meeting during consideration of 

item 8 in accordance with section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, 

on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in  

paragraphs 12 and 13 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

 

 

 

Signed as a correct record 

Chair of the Standards Committee 

 

 

Page 4



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  Standards 14-09-2022 

1 of 4 

To: Standards Committee, 14 September 2022 10:00 
From: Marc Ronan, Monitoring Officer 
 
 

Member Dispensation Request 
 
 

Decision Required YES ☒ / NO ☐ Agenda Item 4 

 

Recommendation 

Agree to the applications for dispensation regarding those members set out in 
paragraph 4. be approved in the circumstances set out in Regulation 2 (a), (d) and 
(f) of the Standards Committee (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001 
in the standard form as set out in Paragraph 2. to speak and vote and that the 
dispensations run to the Standards Committee which follows the Annual Meeting 
2023. 

 

 

Key Messages 

Grant of dispensations under Section 81(4) of the Local Government Act (2000) 

 
  

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  Standards 14-09-2022 

2 of 4 

Background 

 
Under Section 81(4) of the Local Government Act 2000  
Standards Committees may grant dispensations to a  
Member of a relevant authority allowing the Member to participate in any business 
where that participation would otherwise be prohibited by the mandatory provisions 
of the Members’ Code of Conduct.  
 
The Welsh Government in the Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations) 
(Wales) Regulations 2001 (SI No: 2279) sets out the circumstances in which these 
dispensations may be granted.  The Standards Committee may only grant 
dispensations in the circumstances set out in the Regulations.  In the report which 
follows, I set out the circumstances or grounds on which dispensations may be 
granted.  
 
The form of the report will generally set out the dispensation, the circumstances in 
which it may be granted and details of the applicant for the dispensation.  
 
It is suggested that all dispensations be granted until the first meeting of the 
Standards Committee following the Authority Annual General Meeting in 2023 to 
ensure that any dispensations granted now or subsequently during the municipal 
year all come up for renewal at the same time. 
 
Planning Committee 

 
The Authority is a local Planning Authority comprising of 18 members, 12 appointed 
by the constituent Local Authorities and 6 by Welsh Government. Powys County 
Council is the single largest appointee of members to the Authority. It is not 
uncommon for the Authority to consider planning applications made by Powys 
County Council.   
 
Dual-hatted members are members who serve on two or more relevant authorities; 
for instance, a member who is both a County Council and Authority member. If a 
dual-hatted member is taking part in an Authority meeting and an issue is under 
discussion which affects that member’s other authority, then provided they do not 
have a prejudicial interest, under paragraph 12(2)(a) of the Code of Conduct the dual 
hatted member only needs to declare a personal interest if they intend to speak on 
the matter involving the other authority. If the member does speak on the matter, 
then they must declare a personal interest, but they are still able to vote. 
 
However, the exemption is 12(2)(a) does not apply where the business relates to the 
determination of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration 
(paragraph 12(3) of the Code of Conduct). 
 
  

Page 6



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  Standards 14-09-2022 

3 of 4 

The Authority has a current shortfall of 4 Welsh Government appointed members 
and as such Planning Committee comprises 10 members (12 being the maximum 
number). Quorum for Planning Committee requires 6 members in attendance. 
Unfortunately, this can cause some problems in dealing with Authority business as 5 
of the Planning Committee members i.e., 50% of members are Powys County 
Council appointees. Should they be prevented from speaking and voting at Planning 
Committee by reason of their appointment, Planning Committee would be inquorate 
and unable to consider any Powys County Council planning applications. Standards 
Committee is asked to grant those members dispensations to cover this situation.  
 
The form of application for dispensation is intended to try to cover the situation when, 
although strictly required in law under the Members’ Code of Conduct, serial 
declarations affect the smooth running of Committee business in circumstances 
where the general public would not draw any adverse inference from the 
relationships being declared. 
 
Hence all the applications for dispensations request permission to speak and vote on 
issues relating to planning applications of Powys County Council, provided these 
matters do not directly financially advantage or disadvantage, or give other direct 
benefit or disbenefit to a member.   
 
The Member using the dispensation will understand that it cannot be used if the 
matter under consideration would confer a greater benefit on the member than on 
other tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the Authority’s area, or be such that a 
member of the public might reasonably conclude it would significantly affect the 
Member’s ability to act purely on the merits of the case and in the public interest if 
the Member were to take part in the discussion. 
 
Standards form of Dispensation: Planning Committee 

 
“To speak and vote on issues relating to the planning applications of Powys County 
Authority provided they do not directly financially advantage or disadvantage or give 
other direct benefit or disbenefit to a member.  This dispensation will not apply in 
circumstances where a member of the public might reasonably conclude that the 
appointment would significantly affect the member’s ability to act purely on the merits 
of the case and in the public interest.” 
 
Circumstances for granting the Dispensation: Employment 

 
The circumstances are: 

 “(a)  no fewer than half of the members of the relevant authority or of a 
committee of the authority (as the case may be) by which the business is to be 
considered has an interest which relates to that business;”  

 “(d)  the nature of the member’s interest is such that the  

Member’s participation in the business to which the interest relates would not 
damage public confidence in the conduct of the relevant authority’s business”  

 “(f) the participation of the member in the business to which the interest 
relates is justified by the member’s particular role or expertise.”  

 

Page 7



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  Standards 14-09-2022 

4 of 4 

Note: these paragraphs derive from Regulation 2 of the Standards Committees 
(Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001.  
 
The members requiring dispensation are Powys County Councillor’s, Edwin 
Roderick, Iain McIntosh, Ed Jones, Huw Williams, William Powell 
 
Recommendation 

 
That the applications for dispensation regarding those members set out in the 
paragraph above. be approved in the circumstances set out in Regulation 2 (a), (d) 
and (f) of the Standards Committee (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 
2001 in the standard form as set out in Paragraph 2. to speak and vote and that the 
dispensations run to the Standards Committee which follows the Annual Meeting 
2023. 
 

Page 8



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  Standards 14-09-2022 

1 of 3 

To: Standards Committee, 14 September 2022 10:00 
From: Marc Ronan, Monitoring Officer 
 
 

Standards Committee Dispensation Policy 
 
 

Decision Required YES ☒ / NO ☐ Agenda Item 5 

 

Recommendation 

Approve the Dispensation Policy (Appendix A) and Application Form (Appendix B) 

Approve the establishment of a Dispensations Sub-Committee 

Agree to delegate authority to the Dispensations Sub-Committee 

Agree that urgent dispensation applications, where it is not possible to convene 
the Sub-Committee in time, can instead be authorised by the Monitoring Officer, in 
consultation with the Chair (or Deputy Chair) 

 

 

Key Messages 

To enable the Committee to consider proposed changes to the arrangements for 

discharging its functions in relation to personal interest dispensation applications 

submitted under the Members’ Code of Conduct, specifically: 

(i) New Committee’s Policy on Dispensations and the Dispensations 

Application Form; and 

 

(ii) the establishment of a Standards sub-committee to determine dispensation 

applications in accordance with the Committee’s approved Policy on 

Dispensations. 

 

 
  

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  Standards 14-09-2022 

2 of 3 

Background 

 
The Standards Committee’s terms of reference include authority for the Committee: 
 

Decide upon written applications by Members of the Authority for a 
dispensation to speak, or to speak and to vote, on any matter coming before 
the Authority and/or its Committees in relation to which the Member making 
the application has a disclosable pecuniary interest; and to decide the terms 
of any dispensation granted. 
 

A member with a personal and prejudicial interest in a matter may apply to the 
Standards Committee for a dispensation using the Dispensation Application Form. 
The circumstances in which the Committee may grant a dispensation are prescribed 
by law – the Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 
2001. 
 
A dispensation granted by the Standards and Ethics Committee will allow a member 
with a prejudicial personal interest in a matter to participate in that Authority business 
(pursuant to section 81(4) of the Local Government Act 2000).  However, the Member 
must declare their personal interest and the fact that a dispensation has been granted 
and must provide written notification giving details of their interest and the 
dispensation (pursuant to the Members’ Code of Conduct, paragraphs 11 and 14). 
 
Issues 

 
Guidance from the Welsh Government regarding dispensations states that “the 
dispensation regime is necessary to perform three functions: to deal with interests 
that Members share with a large proportion of the public, to allow the proper conduct 
of business, and to enable the participation rules to be applied to take account of 
individual circumstances”. 
 
The Committee’s proposed Policy on Dispensations is attached as Appendix A; and 
the Application Form is attached as Appendix B. 
 
The Committee usually only meets 2 or 3 times every year and that often members 
will not be aware that they have a personal and prejudicial interest in a matter until 
the agenda and reports for a meeting are published three clear working days ahead 
of a meeting.  It is suggested that Members should submit any application as soon as 
they realise that they need a dispensation and that a subcommittee be set up to deal 
with any applications made so that it is possible to deal with them at short notice if 
necessary. 
 
Although dispensation applications are not received frequently, it is important that 
when applications are received, they are determined reasonably promptly. Any delay 
in determining applications may result in a member being prevented from participating 
in Authority business or delay the Authority’s decision making process.  To address 
this issue, it is recommended that the Committee establish a sub-committee (pursuant 
to powers under section 54A of the Local Government Act 2000) with delegated 
authority to consider dispensation applications (as given the attendance requirements 

Page 10



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  Standards 14-09-2022 

3 of 3 

a sub-committee meeting may be convened more quickly at short notice than a full 
Committee meeting).   
 
The sub-committee must comprise of at least 2 members including the Chair (or Vice-
Chair) and one other Independent member, as the quorum for a Standards sub-
committee requires at least 2 members, at least half of whom must be independent 
members, including the Chair (or Vice-Chair), pursuant to the Standards Committee 
Regs (SI 2001/2283, Reg 24(2)).  It is recommended that the sub-committee should 
comprise of 3 members – 2 Independent Members (to include the Chair / Vice-Chair) 
and one elected Member; to be convened as and when required. 
 
For urgent applications, where it is not possible to convene a sub-committee meeting 
in time, it is recommended that the Monitoring Officer be given delegated authority, 
in consultation with the Chair (or Vice-Chair) to determine such applications. 
 
Conclusion and Next Steps 

 
The Committee is recommended to: 

I. Consider and approve the Dispensations Policy (Appendix A) and Application 
Form (Appendix B); 

II. Approve the establishment of a Dispensations Sub-Committee, comprised of 2 
Independent Members (to include the Chair or Vice-Chair) and one elected 
Member;  

III. Delegate authority to the Dispensations Sub-Committee established under 
recommendation II above to consider and determine any dispensation 
applications received; and 

IV. For urgent dispensation applications, where it is not possible to convene a 
Dispensations Sub-Committee in time, authorise the Monitoring Officer, in 
consultation with the Chair (or Vice-Chair) to determine such applications. 

  

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



BRECON BEACONS NATINAL PARK AUTHORITY 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Policy on Dispensations 

Policy Background and Objectives 

1. Guidance from the National Assembly for Wales regarding dispensations 
states that “the dispensation regime is necessary to perform three functions: 
to deal with interests that Members share with a large proportion of the public, 
to allow the proper conduct of business, and to enable the participation rules 
to be applied to take account of individual circumstances”. 

2. The Standards Committee wishes to secure maximum participation in 
democratic debate by its management of the dispensations process, while 
maintaining public confidence in the conduct of elected and appointed 
representatives.  

3. The Committee has established a policy framework which it will consider 
when considering applications for dispensations as follows:  

a To safeguard the ability of members to properly represent their community. 

b To enable members in particular to be able to participate in the workings of 
relevant outside bodies, including for example by way of a non-exhaustive 
list), community associations, companies and trusts formed with the 
specific purpose of furthering Authority objectives. 

c To distinguish between interests that are of a more technical nature and 
those which are likely to substantially influence the judgement and 
objectivity of individual members; and 

d To recognise that, when Members have a personal, financial or other 
pecuniary interest in an issue, it will rarely be possible to grant 
dispensation when the matter under discussion impacts directly upon that 
interest. 
 

Statutory Framework 

4. Part III of the Local Government Act 2000 covers the conduct of Members, 
and section 81(4) the Act states that – “Any participation by a member or co-
opted member of a relevant authority in any business which is prohibited by 
the mandatory provisions is not a failure to comply with the authority's code of 
conduct if the member or co-opted member has acted in accordance with a 
dispensation from the prohibition granted by the authority's standards 
committee in accordance with regulations made under subsection (5)”. 

 

Page 13



5. The Standards Committee has power to grant dispensations to  

Members to participate in Authority business, but these are limited by  

(among other provisions) the Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations) 
(Wales) Regulations 2001. In these regulations, regulation 2 sets out the 
following circumstances in which the Standards & Ethics Committee, under 
section 81(4) of the Local Government Act 2000, may grant dispensations: 

 

a. no fewer than half of the members of the relevant authority or of a 
committee of the authority (as the case may be) by which the business 
is to be considered has an interest which relates to that business; 

b. no fewer than half of the members of a leader and cabinet executive of 
the relevant authority by which the business is to be considered has an 
interest which relates to that business and either paragraph (d) or (e) 
also applies; 

c. in the case of a county or county borough Authority; the inability of the 
member to participate would upset the political balance of the relevant 
authority or of the committee of the authority by which the business is 
to be considered to such an extent that the outcome would be likely to 
be affected; 

d. the nature of the member’s interest is such that the member’s 
participation in the business to which the interest relates would not 
damage public confidence in the conduct of the relevant authority’s 
business; 

e. the interest is common to the member and a significant proportion of 
the general public; 
 

f. the participation of the member in the business to which the interest 
relates is justified by the member’s particular role or expertise; 
 

g.  the business to which the interest relates is to be considered by an 
overview and scrutiny committee of the relevant authority and the 
member’s interest is not a pecuniary interest; 
 

h.  the business which is to be considered relates to the finances or 
property of a voluntary organisation of whose management committee 
or board the member is a member otherwise than as a representative of 
the relevant authority and the member has no other interest in that 
business provided that any dispensation shall not extend to participation 
in any vote with respect to that business; 
 

i. . it appears to the committee to be in the interests of the inhabitants of 
the area of the relevant authority that the disability should be removed; 
or 
 

Page 14



j.  it appears to the committee to be otherwise appropriate to grant a 
dispensation1 

Procedures 

6. Applications for dispensation may be made to the Monitoring Officer by 
completing and submitting the Application Form attached. The request for a 
dispensation should be made as soon as you realise you need a dispensation 
for a particular matter. All applications must be accompanied by details of the 
member’s interest, together with relevant details, including the matter in 
respect of which dispensation is sought. Joint applications may be made 
where more than one member of the authority seeks dispensation to speak or 
vote on the same matter. Dispensation may be given to either speak and vote 
or to speak only 
 

7. The Monitoring Officer is authorised to make any minor amendments to this 
Policy, as may be required from time to time. 
 

8. Further advice may be obtained from the Monitoring Officer 

                                           

1 Under the Regulations, a dispensation granted under this ground and which remains in effect, must 

be reviewed by the Committee once in every 12 month period from the date on which the 
dispensation is first granted, to determine whether the dispensation should continue to have effect. Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

      

  
  
  

APPLICATION TO THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE   

 FOR DISPENSATION   

Please note that each section MUST be completed.  Please refer to the attached Guidance 
Notes when completing the form.  

1. YOUR DETAILS   

  

  

Your full name:  
  

  

Name of your Council:  
  

  

Your address and postcode:  
  

  

Contact telephone number(s):  
  

  

Email address:  

  
  

2. DETAILS OF YOUR INTEREST  

  

What is the matter under consideration?  
 

  

What is your interest in the above matter?  
 

  

  

When will the above matter be considered?   
  
  
  

Page 17



Are you applying for dispensation to:  
  

                   Speak and vote:      Speak only:       X
  

Make written                                                 Exercise Executive  

                                   Powers          Representations    X  

Page 1 of 6  

3. GROUNDS FOR DISPENSATION   

  

Regulations issued by the National Assembly for Wales prescribe the circumstances in which 
the Standards Committee may grant a dispensation. These grounds for granting a dispensation 
are summarised below and are set out in full in the attached guidance notes. On which of the 
following grounds do you believe that a dispensation should be granted in this case? Please tick 
the appropriate box(es).   

  
  at least half of the members considering the business has an interest       

  my inability to participate would upset the political balance of the meeting to such an 

extent that the outcome would be likely to be affected;  

    

 

  my participation would not damage public confidence      

  the interest is common to me and a significant proportion of the general public;      

  my participation in the business is justified by my particular role or expertise;      

  the business is to be considered by an overview and scrutiny committee and my 

interest is not a pecuniary interest;  

    

 

  the business relates to the finances or property of a voluntary organisation of whose 

management committee or board I am a member and I have no other interest   

    

 

  it is appropriate to do so in all the circumstances where not otherwise possible to 

make reasonable adjustments to accommodate a person’s disability  

    

 

  

   

Page 18



 

 

  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 (please continue on a separate sheet if necessary)  

  

  

I confirm that the information provided on this form is true to the best of my knowledge. I agree 

that this application and all the information contained within it may form part of a public report to 

the Standards Committee. I request a dispensation in respect of the above matter.  

  

Signed:    Date:  08             /    09  2020     

  

 

  4. INFORMATION IN SUPPORT OF YOUR APPLICATION   

Page 19



Please return this form to the Monitoring Officer, Chief Executive’s Department, Carmarthenshire County 

Council, County Hall, Carmarthen, SA31 1JP.  

  

Page 20



 

Guidance notes  

  

  

(1) Please read through the Code of Conduct and decide which of the paragraphs is most 

appropriate to your case. Brief details of the relevant paragraphs are noted in the table 

below. If you are unsure, please contact the Monitoring Officer for advice.  

Para.   Type of personal interest    

10(2)(a)  Council business which relates to or is likely to affect:  
• your employment or business,   
• your employer, firm or company  
• a contract made between the Council and you  
• any land, lease or licence in which you have an interest  
• a public body or other association in which you have membership or 

hold a position of general control or management  
  

  

10(2)(c)  Council business which affects your well-being or financial position, or 
the well-being, financial position or other interests of a person with whom 
you live or have a close personal association  
  

  

13  

  

Council business which is being considered by an Overview and Scrutiny  
Committee and which relates to a decision of the Cabinet or another 

Committee of which you were a member at the time [County Council 

only]   

  

  

 .  

  

(2) The Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations)(Wales) Regulations 2001(as amended) 

state that a Standards Committee may grant dispensations where:  

  

(a) no fewer than half of the members of the relevant authority or of a committee of the 

authority (as the case may be) by which the business is to be considered has an 

interest which relates to that business;  

  

(b) no fewer than half of the members of a leader and cabinet executive of the relevant 

authority by which the business is to be considered has an interest which relates to that 

business and either paragraph (d) or (e) also applies;  

  

(c) in the case of a county or county borough council, the inability of the member to 

participate would upset the political balance of the relevant authority or of the committee 

of the authority by which the business is to be considered to such an extent that the 

outcome would be likely to be affected;  

  

(d) the nature of the member's interest is such that the member's participation in the 

business to which the interest relates would not damage public confidence in the 

conduct of the relevant authority's business;  

  

(e) the interest is common to the member and a significant proportion of the general public;  

  

(f) the participation of the member in the business to which the interest relates is justified 

by the member's particular role or expertise;  

  

(g) the business to which the interest relates is to be considered by an overview and 

scrutiny committee of the relevant authority and the member's interest is not a 

pecuniary interest;  

Page 21



 

  

(h) the business which is to be considered relates to the finances or property of a voluntary 
organisation of whose management committee or board the member is a member  
otherwise than as a representative of the relevant authority and the member has no 

other interest in that business provided that any dispensation shall not extend to 

participation in any vote with respect to that business; or  

  

(i) it appears to the committee to be in the interests of the inhabitants of the area of the 

relevant authority that the disability should be removed provided that written notification 

of the grant of the dispensation is given to the National Assembly for Wales within 

seven days in such manner as it may specify.  
  

(j) It is considered appropriate in all the circumstances to do so where not 
otherwise possible to make reasonable adjustments to accommodate a persons 
disability  

Page 22



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  Standards 14-09-2022 

1 of 4 

To: Standards Committee, 14 September 2022 10:00 
From: Marc Ronan, Monitoring Officer 
 
 

Officer Declarations of Interest 
 
 

Decision Required YES ☐ / NO ☒ Agenda Item 6 

 

Recommendation 

Note the contents of this report and policy and the robust assurances that it 
provides in terms of the measures used in mitigating the risk of officer conflict of 
interest and in declaring interests. 

 

 

Key Messages 

This report sets out the framework for officers declaring or making known any 
interest they might have that may present a conflict of interest, secondly it 
describes the measures which are in place to mitigate potential conflicts of interest 
and finally, assurances are provided as to the robustness of the measures in place 
and where improvements are required.  

 
  

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  Standards 14-09-2022 

2 of 4 

Background 

 
There is a clear framework for elected members to make a declaration of disclosable 
pecuniary interests, as members need to make a declaration of such interests on a 
register accessible to the public.    
 
The Employee Code of Conduct imposes an obligation on staff to declare conflicts of 
interests demonstrating they are not involved in any decisions where they have a 
conflict of interest.  The draft policy details the proposed measures for officers to 
declare or make known any potential or actual conflict of interest and the measures 
in place to mitigate the risk of officers making decisions where there is a conflict of 
interest. 
 
Main issues  

 
Authority Register of Staff Interests  
 
The Register of Staff Interests is an Authority procedure where employees should 
declare outside interests where there may be, or could be perceived to be, a conflict 
of interest between their duties as an employee and their personal interests.  The 
declaration covers:  

• Membership of organisations the Authority needs to know about  

• Associations with other businesses  

• Beneficial interest in land or property   

• Certain personal relationships  

• Financial interests in Authority contracts and sponsorship   

 
Declaration of Interest forms are completed by staff on commencement of 
employment and are automatically sent out annually to employees. To make a 
declaration on the Register of Interests, employees complete a register of interest 
form through the staff Portal and which automatically notifies their line manager to 
address and then notifies the Director for final review. Completed forms are 
automatically saved in the Register of Staff Interests 
 
Declaration of Interests forms part of the Employees Code of Conduct and failure to 
follow the Code could mean an employee is referred into formal policies and 
procedures, including the Disciplinary Policy Procedure.  
 
The responsibility lies with the relevant Director to check the returns to ensure that 
the returns are credible, assess whether any declared interests may create a 
potential problem and if there is a potential conflict then to take steps to address it.    
 
Measures in place to mitigate conflicts of interest  
 
There are robust safeguards in place to mitigate the risk of potential conflict of 
interests which are described within the draft appended report.  
 
  

Page 24



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  Standards 14-09-2022 

3 of 4 

Compliance and Monitoring   
 
It is the responsibility of Directors to check the register of interest returns and to 
acquaint themselves of any potential conflicts of interest and address as appropriate.   
  
Officers who have identified an interest inform their line manager in writing of the 
situation.  This is by completion of an online form which automates the process 
through SharePoint. 
 
From time-to-time internal audit carry out a check of some applications to ensure  
the due processes are being followed.   
 
Relation to Authority Priorities 

 
This is a routine operational adjustment. 
 
Impact Analysis 

 
Legal - ensuring the system is fair, transparent and lawful can minimise the risk of 
potential legal challenges.   
 
Equality and diversity - there are no adverse equality implications arising from this 
report. 
 
Risk 

 
There are a number of risks associated with the decision-making process which are 
both financial and reputational. The measures outlined in the report seek to minimise 
the risk of challenge on the grounds of conflict of interest. 
 
Conclusion and Next Steps 

 
Decisions made by the Authority can have far reaching implications in terms of the 
effect on the future quality of the environment and also the amenities of local 
residents of the city and in some cases financial gain. Decisions have the potential to 
affect the lives of many people. It is therefore important that the decision-making 
process is robust.   
 
The Authority’s Register of Staff Interest process is part of the Employees Code of 
Conduct which applies to all staff and is an important tool to maintain confidence in 
the impartiality of public services. Officers in high-risk posts are required to make an 
annual declaration, even if they have nothing to declare. All officers, irrespective of 
their grade must make a declaration if they have personal interests which could be 
perceived to be in conflict with their Authority duties. 
 
  

Page 25



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  Standards 14-09-2022 

4 of 4 

At a service level, officers understand the need to inform their line manager in writing 
when there are any potential conflicting interests. The basic principle is that where 
there is any perceived conflict, officers step aside and the work is reallocated to 
another colleague.  This removes the risk of accusations of undue influence or 
impropriety.  It has been some time since the procedure was communicated to 
officers and this will be addressed at a future management meeting.    
  

Page 26



  

  

Declaration of Employee Interests Policy  

Summary  

1.  This policy provides information on the responsibility and requirement for all 

Authority staff to declare any personal financial or non-financial interests which 

may conflict with the interests of the Authority.  The guidance applies equally 

where the employee has not been formally asked to declare their interests and/or 

the conflict of interest is of a temporary nature.   

  Background  

2. The Authority subscribes to the Nolan Committee’s first report ‘Standards in 

Public Life’. This report sets out the seven principles of public life and these are 

summarized at Annex 2 

3. In accordance with the Authority’s Employee Code of Conduct, all employees 

are required to declare any interests that may conflict with the interest of the 

Authority, or adversely affect the performance of their duties.  Such disclosure 

protects employees from accusations of impropriety.   

4. The National Audit Office defines a conflict of interest as: “A set of circumstances 

that creates a risk that an individual’s ability to apply judgement or act in one role 

is, or could be, impaired or influenced by a secondary interest. It can occur in 

any situation where an individual or organisation (private or government) can 

exploit a professional or official role for personal or other benefit. Conflicts can 

exist if the circumstances create a risk that decisions may be influenced, 

regardless of whether the individual actually benefits. The perception of 

competing interests, impaired judgement or undue influence can also be a 

conflict of interest.” 

5. A ‘conflict of interest’ is therefore considered by the Authority to be any 

connection or association with a third party that is (or appears to be) against the 

best interests of the Authority, or which could enable an employee to be 

suspected of using their position within the Authority to gain an unfair advantage 

from a third party. 

6. Conflicts of interest are best avoided altogether; however, they are often difficult 

to avoid; or avoidance may place a serious burden upon business processes or 

home life. In such circumstances the principles of openness and integrity apply, 

and the required action is for employees to disclose such conflicts; and for the 

Authority and the employee to manage the conflict accordingly. 

Page 27



7. The Authority operates a ‘disclosure policy’ for employees that excludes 

individuals from participating in decisions when there is conflict of interest. All 

such interests are publicly disclosed in a register, and this is administered by the 

S151 Employee. 

Authority Register of Interests   

 

8. To ensure compliance with the Nolan Committee recommendations and the 

Employee code of Conduct, it is important all employees of the Authority declare 

any private interests that may result in a potential or actual conflict with their 

duties 

9. The Register of Staff Interests is an Authority procedure where employees 

should declare outside interests where there may be, or could be perceived to 

be, a conflict of interest between their duties as an employee and their personal 

interests.  The declaration covers:   

  

1. Membership of organisations the Authority needs to know about   

2. Associations with other businesses   

3. Beneficial interest in land or property,    

4. Certain personal relationships  

5. Financial interests in Authority contracts and sponsorship 

 

Definition 

10. For the purpose of this guidance, employee interests can be categorised as 

financial or non-financial.  Financial interests are those where a payment or 

financial gain is received from an organisation which has dealings with the 

Authority.  Examples include being in employed work, being a director or having 

a beneficial interest in shares, land or property.  Non-financial interests are those 

where no direct personal financial gain is received, for example being related to 

an employee, or a member.  

11. Where it is considered relevant, the declaration of staff conflict of interests 

should extend to include the interests of the employee’s spouse or partner.      

12. The responsibility is on the individual to declare all interests that could be 

relevant. The decision-maker in a particular case (usually the line manager) 

should first make an assessment as to the relevance of each declared interest 

and, if considered relevant, whether it meets the definition of an actual, potential 

or perceived conflict of interest as follows: 

Page 28



 Actual conflicts - where there is a risk that an employee’s ability to apply 

judgement is or could be impaired or influenced by an extant secondary 

interest. 

 Potential conflicts - where an employee’s ability to apply judgement or act 

in their role could be impaired or influenced by a secondary interest in the 

future. 

 Perceived conflicts - where an employee’s ability to apply judgement or act 

in one role could reasonably be perceived as impaired or influenced by a 

secondary interest (i.e., it could cause a reasonable person to think there 

was a conflict of interest) 

In some cases, the decision maker may consider that the interest is relevant 

but presents no issue (i.e., it does not meet the definition of an actual, 

potential, or perceived conflict of interest). 

13. Below is a non-exhaustive list of types of interests that it might be necessary to 

declare. Departments may choose to add to this list or focus on interests which 

are likely to be most prevalent given their specific workforce context. However, 

departments should ensure that as a minimum the below types of interests are 

accounted for and defined in their guidance. 

14. Employees must declare any outside interests relevant to their Authority role 

against the following categories: 

6. The following is a list of situations that may result in a conflict of interests for a 

member of staff:  

• Personal interests - where the employee has relevant close family or 

personal relationships (including from a work context) which could 

influence their objectivity 

• Financial interests - where the employee stands to gain financially from the 

work they are undertaking in the Authority, or they can use their status to 

deliberately prevent someone else from gaining financially. This could also 

include where an individual has been declared bankrupt or their general 

financial status makes them more vulnerable to situations that could be 

seen to compromise their position. 

• Private shareholdings - where an individual holds shares in a business that 

the Authority has an interest in. 

Page 29



• Outside occupations - all remunerated outside employment, work and 

appointments should be declared, whether or not considered relevant and 

caught by the requirements in the Officer Code of Conduct. Where work is 

not directly remunerated but may generate financial advantage for third 

parties, this should also be declared 

 Voluntary roles - although the Authority supports the performance of a 

wide range of voluntary roles in the wider public and third sectors, in some 

cases these roles may create a conflict with an individual’s Authority role. 

For example, where an individual works in an organisation that holds 

regulatory or procurement responsibilities for a separate organisation they 

hold a voluntary role for, or where they may have access to information 

which could be of benefit to the organisation for which they volunteer. 

 Previous employment, appointment or other outside roles - where an 

individual has previously held roles, or formed close working relationships, 

that might be relevant to their current role.  

 Business interests - where an individual holds an interest in any 

organisation (including directorships) which they could use their official 

position to further. 

 Insider dealing - Insider dealing is a serious criminal offence under the 

Criminal Justice Act 1993. If in the course of an individual’s work, they 

come into possession of information that could be used for financial gain 

(or other types of gain) this must be treated in the strictest of confidence. It 

may be necessary to declare any interests that put an individual in a 

position where they could benefit from holding certain information. 

 Procurements - where relevant staff members have direct or indirect 

financial, economic or other personal interest which might be perceived to 

compromise their impartiality and independence in the procurement 

process. 

 Any other relevant interests - individuals should include any other interests 

they hold which might reasonably be perceived as relevant to their 

responsibilities as an employee. 

•  

Examples  

• A planning application or appeal in which the address concerned is the 

employee’s residence or a neighbouring address.  

• Ownership of land that is subject to an Authority decision.   

• A contract between the Authority and another organisation in which the 

employee has a personal or financial interest (including Authority-owned or 

Page 30



other related parties to the Authority).  Any pay received from related 

parties must be declared.  

• Planning applications/appeals in which the applicant/appellant is a 

friend/relative or neighbour.  

• An employee, a family member, or personal contact own property, or intend 

to buy property, the value or purchase price of which may be affected by a 

decision or recommendation the employee is involved in making, in the 

course of your employment.  

• An employee has access to information at work which may assist or be 

perceived as assisting the employee in a private venture. 

• An employee uses Authority systems/contacts to obtain materials for the 

employee’s own use at a preferential price. 

• An employee is involved in making a purchasing decision involving external 

suppliers/contractors and the employee, or family member, or a personal 

contact has an interest (financial or otherwise) in one of the potential 

suppliers/contractors 

• It should be noted that this is not an exhaustive list and where doubt exists 

about whether an interest should be declared or not, then the interest 

should be declared.  

7. In addition, where an employee is a member of a secret society this should also 

be declared.  A secret society is defined as any lodge, chapter, society, trust or 

regular gathering or meeting which is not open to members of the public who are 

not members, and where:  

• it is a requirement of membership to make a commitment (whether by oath 

or otherwise) or allegiance;  

• and/or, a commitment (whether by oath or otherwise) of secrecy in regard 

to rules, membership or conduct.      

Declaration Procedure  

8. Once discovered, the employee is under an obligation to declare the conflict as 

soon as practicable. If there is any doubt, it is better to declare than conceal 

9. Declarations should be made in the Register of Staff Interests using the attached 

form:  

Page 31



• As part of the new starter process (HR led).  

• On an ad hoc basis as conflicts arise (Manager/Employee led).  

• On an annual basis for all employee at Grade 10 and above as part of 

the ‘related parties’ statement of accounts process (Finance led).  

• On an annual basis for other employees who work individually or as a 

team in a service which procures/commissions goods/services on 

behalf of the Authority.  

• On an annual basis for planning employees who work individually or as 

a team in a service which determines applications on behalf of the 

Authority.  

10. In all cases where an employee declares a personal interest, the Declaration of 

Interests form (see Annex 1) must be completed. This declaration requires 

employees to provide details of the conflict. An employee’s Line Manager, Head 

of Function or Executive Director is also required to confirm how the conflict will 

be managed and sign and date the declaration. 

11. Completed declarations should then be sent to the Section 151 and Monitoring 

Employee who shall maintain a confidential register of such declarations and a 

copy will be kept on the employee’s file.  

12. At this point all declarations received over the previous year will be reviewed by 

Directors and the Chief Executive.  

13. Failure to comply with this procedure will be seen as a breach of the Employee 

Code of Conduct and may result in disciplinary action being taken.  

 

14. The responsibility lies with the Director to check the returns to ensure that the 

returns are credible, assess whether any declared interests may create a 

potential problem and if there is a potential conflict then to take steps to address 

it.     

15. Employees are required to complete a new form annually (or sooner if the 

conflict situation needs to be updated due to changes of circumstances). If the 

conflict of interests ceases, the S151 and Monitoring Employee should be 

notified as soon as practicable. 

16. The Authority has an electronic declaration system which all staff are required 

to complete in a timely manner 

 

Guidance for Line Managers  

17. Once an actual, potential or perceived relevant outside interest has been raised, 

the decision maker, usually the individual’s line manager, will need to decide 

what action to take in response. This should be agreed in conversation with the 

Page 32



individual who has made the declaration where possible and then be formally 

recorded. The following is a non-exhaustive list of the type of action that may be 

taken: 

 Agreement that there is no conflict of interest (or perceived conflict of 

interest) - it may be that the decision maker and individual decide that 

there is in fact no conflict of interest to be found. If this is the case then no 

additional action is likely to be necessary 

 Exclusion from the activity - it may be that the only reasonable step to take 

to eliminate the risk is to have the individual concerned remove 

themselves from the activity/relationship etc. that is causing the conflict of 

interest. All actual conflicts of interest must be resolved in this manner. 

Examples of actions include: changing responsibilities, recusal from 

decision making, divestment or ending a role. 

 Continue with the activity but implement actions to mitigate any real or 

potential risk - what actions are necessary will be entirely dependent on 

the nature of the conflict of interest and the level of risk, however it might 

include things such as closer monitoring, revisions to existing work plans, 

or the additional disclosure of all relevant information to others involved in 

the decision-making process. 

 

18. Any actual conflicts of interest must be resolved in a way which removes the 

conflict. Potential or perceived conflicts of interest may exist in some 

circumstances, provided that effective mitigations are put in place. The 

assessments, considerations and actions agreed should be properly 

documented to ensure a clear audit trail. 

19. In thinking through an assessment, the decision-maker will want to consider, for 

example, how the decision would be explained to a judge or defended publicly, 

and how it would look from the perspective of a member of the public. As above 

it is good practice for the line manager to ensure that a second colleague (or 

possibly the HR business partner or member of the relevant senior leadership 

team) checks what is proposed. If agreement cannot be reached on what action 

should be taken, line managers should escalate this to their director or Chief 

Executive (where the Director is the decision maker), who may take advice from 

the S151 and Monitoring Officer). The decision of the Director/Chief Executive 

is final. 

20. Once a Declaration of Interests form has been received, Line Managers should 

discuss with the employee how the conflict will be managed, record this on the 

declaration and then determine whether the conflict (or the management of the 

conflict) is likely to impact upon other functions or Directorates. If such an impact 

is likely, the employee and the Line Manager should report this to other 

managers and record this action on the declaration. The Authority recommends 

Page 33



that any wider circulation of the Declaration of Interests form is kept to a ‘need 

to know’ basis only.  

21. There may be circumstances where it is appropriate for a file note to be added 

to programme, project or case files to indicate that an employee has declared a 

personal interest (especially during planning, tender or procurement exercises); 

however, copies of the actual Declaration of Interests should not be included. It 

is sufficient to record in the file that the employee has declared a personal 

interest, together with further narrative that confirms what alternative 

arrangements are in place to manage the conflict (for example: that the 

employee will not be involved in the evaluation or execution of a tender).  

22. Comments regarding this guidance (or where clarification of general procedure 

is required) should be referred to the Monitoring Employee 

 

Roles and responsibilities 

 

23. There are several parties involved in the management and declaration of outside 

interests. Below is a non-exhaustive list of the various parties that have a 

responsibility for ensuring interests are dealt with as and when they arise. 

 The employee- Under the terms of the Employee Code of Conduct, the 

employee must conduct themselves in accordance with the core values of 

integrity, honesty, objectivity, and impartiality. Individuals must declare all 

relevant outside interests to their line manager as soon as they arise. 

 Line managers - Line managers are likely to be in most cases the first 

point of call for those declaring relevant outside interests. Line managers 

will assess all declared outside interests and decide how to address any 

actual, potential, or perceived conflicts of interest that arise (as above, it is 

good practice for the line manager to ensure that a second colleague and / 

or the HR business partner sense checks what has been agreed). Where 

this is not possible, they will need to make sure that the decision on how to 

address a declaration of outside interests is escalated to an appropriate 

level. 

 S151/Monitoring Officer – these officers are the Authority lead and expert 

on declarations of interest, responsible for overseeing and ensuring 

compliance with the internal policies/procedures. HR business partners 

should be equipped to support individual line managers, where needed, in 

their assessments and offer an additional layer of independent assurance 

in considering declarations of interest.  

 

Confidentiality  

Page 34



24. With the specific exception of Chief Employees, information gathered through 

this process is for use by the Authority only and as such will not be made public, 

unless there is an overriding legal requirement for disclosure; for example, as a 

statutory disclosure in the annual Statement of Accounts or where a request is 

made under the Freedom of Information Act and no exemption applies.  

Information disclosed as a result will be kept anonymous and staff involved will 

be informed.  

25. The Register of Staff Interests will be held securely only to be accessed by the 

Director and his/her delegated employee.  However, during collection, or of 

reasonable management and assurance procedures, information may be made 

available to the employee’s line manager, audit and HR.  All employees are 

encouraged to discuss conflicts of interest with their line manager and to jointly 

identify interests that should be declared.  

  

Page 35



Annex 1 

Declaration of Staff Interests Form  

Name of person making this declaration:  

Location and Directorate:  

Nature of declaration:  

Background (Summary of any information that provides additional context to 

the declaration)  

The potential conflict and the parties involved (Describe why there is a 

conflict and name the individuals or organisations involved)  

Likely duration of conflict  

(Explain if this will be an ongoing conflict or specific to a particular investment 

decision)  

Managing the potential conflict  

(N.B. Line Manager, or Director to provide details of how the potential conflict 

will be managed)  

Signature of Line Manager, or Director 

………………………………………………………  

Date……………..  

Signature of person making this declaration 

………………………………………………………  

Date……………..  

I have been given a copy of and have read and understood the Authority’s 

Declaration of Staff Interests Policy regarding disclosure of personal interests 

and I agree to abide by its provisions. I declare to the best of my knowledge and 

belief, the information given within this form is correct 

 

  

Page 36



Annex 2  

Disclosure of Personal Interests 

Corporate values  

THE SEVEN PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC LIFE  

Selflessness Holders of public office should take decisions solely in terms of 

the public interest. They should not do so in order to gain financial or other 

material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. 

Integrity Holders of public office should not place themselves under any 

financial or other obligation to outside individuals or organisation that might 

influence them in the performance of their official duties.  

Objectivity In carrying out public business, including making public 

appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and 

benefits, holders of public office should make choices on merit.  

Accountability Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and 

actions to the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is 

appropriate to their office.  

Openness Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the 

decisions and actions that they take. They should give reasons for their 

decisions and restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly 

demands.  

Honesty Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests 

relating to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in 

a way that protects the public interests.  

Leadership Holders of public office should promote and support these principles 

by leadership and example. 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  Standards Committee 14-09-2022 

1 of 2 

To: Standards Committee, 14 September 2022 10:00 
From: Marc Ronan, Monitoring Officer 
 
 

National Forum for Independent Standards Members 
 
 

Decision Required YES ☐ / NO ☒ Agenda Item 7 

 

Recommendation 

Note the contents of this paper. 

 

 

Key Messages 

Based on a recommendation made in the Penn Report a National Forum for the 
Independent Chairs of Standards Committees is currently being established. 

 

Key responsibilities for the forum identified as: 

1. Providing a forum for the exchange of best practice between members of 
Standards Committees 

2. Receiving presentations and exchanging views on developments within the 
ethical regime 

3. To promote the co-ordination of activity where desirable 

 

As the National Forum is still in the early stages of development, this report is 
purely for noting. Members of the Committee will be updated as further updates 
are made available.  

 
  

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  Standards Committee 14-09-2022 

2 of 2 

Background 

 
At the end of 2021 the Monitoring Officer Group (MOG) met to discuss a 
recommendation made in the Penn Report on establishing a National Forum for the 
Independent Chairs of Standards Committees. The role of the Forum would be to 
allow the discussion of ideas and to serve as a space to share best practice. 
Additionally, it would provide a support network for Chairs who are all co-opted and 
therefore do not have the support of a local political group or national party. 
 
Sufficient support was received across the MOG, with key responsibilities for the 
forum identified as: 

4. Providing a forum for the exchange of best practice between members of 
Standards Committees 

5. Receiving presentations and exchanging views on developments within the 
ethical regime 

6. To promote the co-ordination of activity where desirable 

 
The Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) were consulted on the setting up 
of the National Forum, and as a result have agreed to provide Secretariat support for 
the body. It was noted at this meeting that the body will be a forum for the sharing of 
best practice and the coordination of activity. It cannot and will not be a decision-
making body as such nor will it be the representative body for Standards Committees 
in Wales. 
 
Meeting specifics are due to be discussed in more detail at the next MOG meeting, 
however it is envisioned that meetings will be held once or twice a year at the most. 
In order to manage the size of meetings, membership will be Chairs (Deputy Chairs 
to sub as and when required) and one Monitoring Officer from each region.   
 
Risk 

 
No risk has been identified at this early stage. 
 
Conclusion and Next Steps 

 
It is anticipated that the first meeting will be held before the end of November where 
the discussions to be held of the Terms of Reference and how to incorporate this 
National Forum into the Standards Committee Annual Report.  
 
Standards Members will be kept updated as this initiative develops. 
 

Page 40


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Member Dispensation Requests
	5 Standards Committee Dispensation Policy
	140922-5 Standards Committee Dispensation Policy - Appendix A
	140922-5 Standards Committee Dispensation Policy - Appendix B

	6 Officer Declarations of Interest
	140922-6 Declaration of Staff Interest Policy

	7 National Forum for Standards Committee Members

